
H RJAIN & Co 
CHARTERED ACCOUNT ANTS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE STANDALONE 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

To the Members of Sah Polymers Limited 

Opinion 

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Sah Polymers Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2023, and the statement 
of Profit and Loss, Statement of changes in equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the 
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required 
by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and 
fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as 
amended, ("Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit and total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Other Information 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report along with its 
Annexures and Financial Highlights included in the Company's Annual Report but does 

in 

•~"i~!~ri 6_·,~ e financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 
a 

the standalone financial statements does not cover the other 
e do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility 
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information 
is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibility of Management for Standalone Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give 
a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial 
reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
~~..., are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

il!'AL.t:;;-c:tn-~~·tor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
~ ut is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 

,~~,W,.-Fct a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
d are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
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reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether 
the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, 
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our 
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 
continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate wrtlrthose charged with .governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with r: ~ ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with 
the · re ships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
ind p. dence, ·a d where applicable, related safeguards. 

~ 
? 

~ 
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(i)As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by 
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, in terms of the information and explanations sought by us and 
given by the company and the books of account and records examined by us in the 
normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we give in the 
Annexure - "A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 
to the extent applicable. 

(ii) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best 
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the 
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive 
income, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 
the books of account. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st 
March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is 
disqualified as on 31st March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statement of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, 
ref er to our separate Report in "Annexure B". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance 
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
In our opmiorf and-ro the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in 
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in 
J'>.UUU...)<c><...:..:'«1 Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opi and t e best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 
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(i)The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position. 

(ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses. 

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 

(iv) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, 
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other 
than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the 
company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and 

(c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to their notice that has caused 
them to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any 
material misstatement. 
(v) During the year the Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend. 

For H R JAIN & CO., 
Chart ccountan ts 
Firm' gistration No ~ 

...... 
J.. 
• Mano ~ 

Partner 
Place of signature: 0 

Membership No.: 400459 
Date: May 18, 2023 
ICAI UDIN: S2 Jc.., OtJ '--t 17 a c; I..Kf 7-lJ r b b 6 
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor's Report (Referred to in paragraph (i) 
under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report 
of even date) 

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including 
quantitative details and the situation of property, plant and equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars Intangible 
Assets. 

(b) These property, plant and equipment were physically verified during the year by the 
Management in accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our 
opinion, provides for physical verification of all the property, plant and equipment at 
reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanations given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. 

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the 
Company is lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), 
are held in the name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of 
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year. Consequently, the question of 
our commenting on whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a Registered 
Valuer; specifying the amount of change, if change is 10% or more in the aggregate of 
the net carrying value of each class of Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible 
assets does not arise. 

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have 
been initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property 
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made 
thereunder, and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has 
appropriately disclosed the details in its financial statement does not arise. 

(ii) (a) The physical verification of inventory (excluding stocks with third parties) have 
been conducted at reasonable intervals by the Management during the year and, in our 
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by Management is appropriate. 
In- respect of inventory lying_ with the third parties, these have substantially been 
confirmed by the third parties. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of 
inventory as compared to book records were not 10% or more in aggregate for each class 
of inventory. 

ear the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of 
s, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of 

sec t assets and the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company 
wit '"" "J--"'-'"';,i.L.l!Hor financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of 
the 00)liltt)ttl"]~~""': 
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(iii) During the year the Company has neither made investment nor provided any 
security but has, however, provided guarantee and unsecured loans and advances in the 
nature of loans, to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties: 

(a) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature 
of loans and stood guarantee but has not provided security to any other entity 

(A) & (B) the aggregate amount during the year, and balance outstanding at the balance 
sheet date with respect to such loans or advances and guarantees to: 

(Rs. in lakhs ) 

Aggregate amount Balance 
for the financial outstanding as at 
year 2022-2023 31/03/2023 

Loan Guarantee Loan Guarantee 

Subsidiaries, joint ventures 345.00 300.00 345.00 300.00 
and associates 

Other than subsidiaries, joint 839.98 0.00 841.95 0.00 
ventures and associates 

(b) the Company has neither made investment nor given security. Further the terms and 
conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans and guarantee 
provided are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. 

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, no schedule of repayment of 
principal and payment of interest has been stipulated. 

(d) In respect of the aforesaid loans, there is no amount overdue for more than ninety 
days. 

(e) During the year no loan or advance in the nature of loan granted which has fallen 
due durmgfne year, has-b-een-renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the 
overdue of existing loans given to the same parties. 

(f) During the year the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans 
either repft¥aole on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment, the 
aggre9.1;e---e:t®~t, percentage thereof to the total loans granted, aggregate amount of 
lo Promoters, related parties as defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the 

13 are as under; 
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Aggregate amount % of the total Aggregate amount of loans granted to 
(Rs. In lakhs) loans granted Promoters, related parties as defined in 

clause (76) of section 2 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (Rs.In lakhs) 

1184.98 99.83 345.00 

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the 
Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013, in respect of loans granted, investments made, guarantees, and security 
provided; 

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
accepted any deposit during the year and accordingly the question of complying with 
Sections 73 and 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise. In respect of unclaimed 
deposits, the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 74 and 75 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. According to the information and 
explanations given to us, no Order has been passed by the Company Law Board or the 
National Company Law Tribunal or the Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any other 
Tribunal on the Company. 

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has not been prescribed by the Central Government 
under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of products of the Company. 

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is generally regular in 
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident fund, 
employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues with the appropriate 
authorities. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, details of statutory dues referred to in sub­
clause (a) have not been deposited as on 31st March, 2023 on account of disputes are 
given below: 

---
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Name of Nature of dues Amount The period to Forum where dispute is 
statutes Rs. In which the pending 

lakhs amount relates 

Income Income tax 0.79 (Net FY 2014-15 CIT (Appeal) 
Tax demand of deposit) 
Act,1961 

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, there are no transactions in the books of account that have 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under 
the Income Tax Act, 1961 ( 43 of 1961), that has not been recorded in the books of 
account. 

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, the Company has not defaulted on repayment of loans or 
other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our 
audit procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared Willful Defaulter 
by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the 
Company examined by us, in our opinion, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained. 

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedure 
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short term basis have been utilised for long 
term purposes by the Company. 

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedure 
performed by us, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity 
or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint 
ventures. 

(f) Ac;cording_ to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedure 
performed by us, we report that the company has not raised loans during the year on 
the pledged of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint venture, or associate companies. 

uring the year the Company raised Rs. 6630 lakhs by way of init ial public offer . .--:-c--...._ 

-=-r...-· ....... ..,.· o.n and according to the information and explanations given to us, the 

~9 

utilized the money raised by way of initial public offer for the purposes for 
ere raised, except for the following: 
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(Rs. in lakhs) 

Nature Purpose Total Amount Unutilize Details of Subsequently 
of the for Amount utilized for d default rectified 
fund which Raised the other balance (Reason (Yes/No) and 
raised funds /opening purpose as at /Delay details 

were un- Balance 
raised utilized sheet 

balance date 

Setting up of a new 817.18 412.16 405.02 Amount was NA 
manufacturing facil ity raised during the 
to manufacture new fag end of the 
variant of financial year 
Flexible Intermediate 
Bulk Containers 
(FIBC) 

.... Repayment of certain 1,966.15 1,966.15 0 0 NA 
& secured and 
0 unsecured borrowings 
.!:2 Funding the working 1,495.81 1495.81 0 0 NA J5 
::l capital requirements a.. 
ro 
E General corporate 1250.47 0.00 1250.47 Amount was NA 
C: purposes raised during the -

last lag of the 
financial year 

Issue related 1100.39 1090.38 10.01 Amount was NA 
expenses raised during the 

last lag of the 
financial year 

We further report that the pending utilisation, the Company has temporarily invested 
the unutilised amount as on March 31,2023, in fixed deposits with the scheduled 
commercial bank. 

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible). 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanation given to us, we have neither come across 
any i e of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, noticed or reported 
dur· , nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management. 

0 
urse of our examination of the books and records of the Company, 

,_ cordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
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according to the information and explanation given to us, a report under section 143(12) 
of the Act, in Form ADT-4, as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, was not required to be filed with the Central Government. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) (b)of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, 
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and 
according to the information and explanation given to us and as represented by the 
Management, the Company has received no whistle -blower complaints during the year. 
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi) (c)of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xii) (a) As the Company is not a Nidhi company, therefore, the clauses (xii)(a), (b) and (c) 
of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 

(xiii) All transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 1 77 and 
188 of Companies Act and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, 
etc., as required by the Indian Accounting Standard 24 "Related Party Disclosures" 
specified under section 133 of the Act. 

(xiv) (a) In our opinion and According to the information and explanation given to us, the 
Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us. 

(xv) The company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the 
company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 
India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934); 

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance 
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (COR) from the Reserve Bank of India 
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934; Accordingly, the reporting under clause 
3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations 
made by the Reserve Bank of India, Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xv)(c) of 
the Order is not applicable to the Company. 

~~~ on the information and explanations provided by the Management of the 
e Group does not have any CIC, which is part of the Group. We have not, 

ately evaluated whether the information provided by the management is 
·'-""""'"u·"'" complete. Accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xv)(d) of the Order is 

="'·"""''' to the Company. 
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(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the 
immediately preceding financial year. 

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and 
accordingly, the reporting under clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the 
Company. 

(xix) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the 
financial ratios (also refer Note 57 to the financial statements), ageing and expected 
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other 
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumption ,nothing has come to our attention , which causes us to 
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 
Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 
state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further 
state our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we 
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the Balance Sheet date will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due. 

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are 
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the 
Act), in compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This 
matter has been disclosed in note 61 to the financial statements. 

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be 
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 
135 of Companies Act. 

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of 
standalone financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause 
has been included in this report. 

For H R JAIN & CO., 
Charte Accountants 

_ff-9.~~ ~ 
6'" -

Firm's 

* 
I:: 
~ f,.. 

0 ACCO~~ 

Partner 
Place of signature: Ud 
Membership No.: 400459 
Date: May 18, 2023 
ICAI UDIN: '2-'3, L,ofJl..fS:113,~ vJ7-lJ1tt{, 
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Annexu.re - B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Internal Financial 
Controls with reference to financial statement under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SAH 
POLYMERS LIMITED ("the Company") as of 31st March, 2023 in conjunction with our 
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 
on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the 
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of 
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
"Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the 
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects . 

Our audit involves performirrg-procedt1res to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy 
of the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, 
ass~ s · risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
an effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
pr .,_. ures s ted depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the 
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H RJAIN & Co 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition 
of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to (Referred to in paragraph (ii) (f) under 'Report 
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date) the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate. 

--
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H RJAIN & Co 
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial 
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. 

For H R JAIN & CO., 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm' egistration 

Manoj 
Partner 
Place of signature: Udaipur 
Membership No.: 400459 
Date: May18, 2023 
ICAI UDIN: ?-s(;oo '-157 /3tr,U.::f2LJ '7 b 6~ 

310-313, Arihant Plaza, Near State Bank of India, Udiyapole, Udaipur-313001 

i: 97853 90875 ~: hrjainca@gmail.com 























































































SAIi POLYi\lERS Lli\lITED 
CO~SOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 

Paniculars 

ASSETS 
(I) ;"'lion-current assels 

(a) Property. Plant and Equipment 

(b) Capital work -in- Progress 

(c) ilH'cstment Property 

(d) Goodwill 

(e) Other Intangible Assets 

(f) Intangible assets under development 

(g) Biological Assets other than bearer plants 

(h) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 

(ii) Trade recei\'ables 

(iii) Loans 

(iv) Others 

(i) Deferred tax assets (net) 

(i) Other 11011-cun-c-nt assets 

(2) Current assets 

(a) lm·entories 

(b) Financial Assets 

(i) Investments 

I Note As at 31.03.20"3 

1.97 
133.04 

4,426.38 
91.97 

307.8 I 
0.52 

135.01 

5.68 

2,551.36 

/Rs. in lakhs ) 

As at 3103.2022 

66.88 

1,557.70 
66844 

307.81 
1.76 

-

66.88 

147.82 

1,559.34 

(ii) Trade receivables 8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1,614.37 1,385.58 

(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 

{iv) Bank balances other than (iii) above 

(v) Loans 

(vi) Others 

(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 

(d) Other current assets 

To1al Assets 

EQUITY 
{a) Equity Share Capital 
(b) Other Equity 
Equity attributable to the owner of the parent 

Non- controlling Interest 

LIABILITIES 
(I) Non-current liabilities 

(a) Financial Liabilities 

( i) Borrowings 
(ia) Lease liabilities 
(ii) Trade payables 

15 

16 

I 7 

1,061.34 189.78 

1,089.99 59.22 

840.73 685.22 

6.96 4,613.39 12.27 

482.73 

12,615.85 

2.579.60 1.559.60 

5.883.88 845.05 

294.70 8.758.18 260. 16 

845.58 145.23 

(iii) Other financial liabilities(other than those 

specified in item (b)) 845.58 ._ ____ _, 

(b) Provisions 
(c) Deferred tax liabilities (Net) 
(d) Other non-current liabilities 

(2) Current liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilities 

(i) Borrowings 
(ia) Lease liabilities 
(i i) Trade payables: 

(A)Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 
and small enterprises 
(B)Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
1han micro enterprises and small enterprises 

(iii) Other financial liabilities(other than those 

spec1 I 1eclTtfifeihre,-
( d) 01hcr current liabilities 
( c) Provisions 
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 

Total [ouitv and Liabilities 

See accompanying notes to the financial 
statements 

As per our Audit report of even date attached. 

for and on behalf of 
H.R .. AIN & CO .. 

Chart· ed Accountants 

FRN . ~ 0262C 

ManojlT 

Propric:;\ 
M.No. 400459 

18 168. 18 

19 1,659.21 

20 

813.07 

21 -- 2. 10 2.474.38 

22 287.45 

23 1481 

24 67.27 

12,615.85 

I to 71 -

forandonbchalfoftheBoard ,,~ / 

HAKIM SAD:1&TIDIWAL~~ ALI MOTi 
Who\etime Director Wholetime Di~ctor 

01~ 1~ )__ Rf:~ 
LALIT KUMAR BOLIA ~ L SAXENA 

Udaipur. May 18.2023 -- Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
M.No.28022 LJ DI N ', 2-'.l'-i O O 1'-0 YJ,6-, urz>c ,6' /J ,?-

2.898.58 

785.40 

2.46 

2,332.07 
3.41 

221.50 

6,866.73 

2.664.81 

145.23 

143.13 

3.686.44 
130.79 

96.33 

6,866.73 

ASAD DAUD 

Director 
DIN: 02491539 



SAIi POLYMERS Ll~IITED 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED (Rs.in l:ikhs) 

PartiC'ulars Note no. As 011 J 1.03.2023 As on 31.03.2022 

Amount in Runees Amount in Ruuees 

I Revenue from operations 

II Other income 

III Total Income (1+11) 

IV. Expenses : 

Cost of Materials consumed 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 

Changes in inventories of finished goods 

work- in-progress and Stock -in-Trade 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortization expense 

Other expenses 

T oral expenses 

V Profit/(loss) before share of profit /(loss)of an associate/a 
j o int venture and exceptional items(IV-V) 

VI Share of Pro fit /(loss) of an associa1e 

Vil Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (V-VI) 

VIII Exceptional items 

IX Profit/(loss) before tax (Vll+VIII) 

X Tax expense: 

(I) Current tax 

Less:- MAT Credit 

2 Prior period income tax 

(3) Deferred tax 

XI Profit/(loss)for the period from continu ing operation (XI-
Xll) 

XII P rofit/(Loss) from discontinued operations. 

XIII Tax expense of discontinued operations 

XIV Profit/(loss) from discontinued o pe ration (after tax) ( X II­

Xlll) 

XV Profit!(loss) for the period (XV+ XVI) 

Auributable to 
a) Owners of the company 
(b) Non-controlling interest 

XVI Other Comprehensive Income 

A(i) item that wi ll not be reclassified to profit or loss 

Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive income 

(ii) Income tax relating to item that w ill not be 

reclassified 10 profit or loss 

iii) Exchange difference on transla tion of Financial 

statement of Foreign operation 
B(i) item that wi ll not be reclassified to profit or loss 
(ii) Income tax relating to item that v,1ill not be 

reclassified to profit or loss 

XVII Total Comprehensive Income for the period (XV+XVI) 
( Comprising profit {loss) and other Comprehensive 
Income for the period ) 
Attributable to 

a) Owners of the oarent 
(b) Non-controlling interests 

Of the total comprehens ive income abo\e, 

Profit for the year attributable- to: 

Owners of the parent 

Non-controlling interests 

Of the total comprehensive income above, 

Other comprehensive income attribulable lo: 

Owners of the parent 

Non-controlling interests 

XVII I Earnings per equity share:(for continued Operation): 

( I ) Basic 

(2:) Diluted 

XIX Earnings per equity share:(for discontinued Operation): 

( I) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

XX Earnings per equity share:(for discontinued & continuing 

ooerations) 

(I) Basic 

(2) Diluted 

Sec accompanying notes to the financial statements 

As per our Audit report of even date atlached. 

for and on behalf of 

H.R. JAIN & CO., 
Chartered Accountants 

Proprie tor 

25 

26 

27 

28 
29 

30 

31 

32 

9,539 92 
181.70 

9,721.62 

5,691.50 

630.73 
(587 28) 

443.68 
222 06 
140.33 

2,668.20 
9,209.22 

512.40 

512.40 

512.40 

106.35 
50.82 

108.90 

55.53 

0 .36 
8045 I 36 .34 1---__:2:.c:.8:.:.I~ 

376 06 

33 

- ~ 3. 

33 
33 

I to 71 

376.06 

341.52 
34 .54 

376.06 

341 .52 

34.54 

34 1.52 
34.54 

2 .10 
2. 10 

2.10 
2.10 

for and on behalf of the Board 

\,.,t_,»: ~ 1__ . 

HAKIM SADIQ ALI TIDIWA[ · AZA ALI MOTi 

Wholetime Director 

DIN : 00119156 

~~ 

Wholetime Director 
DIN • 07876224 

X/4e~ 

-

-

M.No. 400459 LALIT KUMAR BOLIA ~ L.-SAXENA 

Company Secretary 

M No 28022 
Uda,pur. May 18,2023 ,(1 Chief Financial Officer 

U-,t, I 1" ; ".2-- '.s ~ 0-t 1t :r 'J V 0 (/ T "Z,)11 8 1.J-+--

8,051.14 
72.31 

8,12345 

4,731.56 
1,232 .15 
(331.24) 

315.32 
123.50 

100.65 
1,402.26 
7,574.20 

549.25 

549.25 

549.25 

111.71 

437.54 

437.54 

420.33 
17.21 

437.54 

420.33 

17.2 1 

420.33 
17.21 

2 .8 1 

2.81 

2.81 

2 .8 1 

ASAD DAUD 

Director 
DIN: 02491539 



Sr. No. 

A 

B 

C 

SAIi POLYMERS LIMITED 

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st March,2023 (Rs. in lakhs ) 

Particulars 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities 

Net Profit before tax 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation 

Interest Paid 

Interest received 
Unrealised Foreign exchange fluctuation on conversion 

Balances written off 
(Profit)/Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 

provisions for gratuity 

Operating Profit before working capital changes 

Adjustment for Changes in Working Capital: 

Decrease/(lncrease) in Trade Receivables 

lncrease/(decrease) in other current liabilities 

Increase in financial liabilities 

Increase in Loan 

Other bank Balances 
lncrease/(Decreasc) in Trade Payables 

Increase in other non current assets 

Non Current Financial assets 

Current Financial assets 

Increase in other current assets 

Increase in tax assets 
Dccrcase/(lncrease) in Stock 

Cash Generated from Operations 

Income Taxes Refund / (Paid) 
Net Cash Inflow /(Out Flow) from Operation (A) 

Cash Flow from I nvcsting Activities: 

Sale of fixed assets 

Purchase of fixed assets 

Capital work-in-progress 

Acquisition of subsidiary 

Interest received 

Net Cash lnflow/(Outflow) from investing Activities (B) 

Cash flow from Financing Activities 

Repayment of borrowings 

Increase in borrowing 

Share capital 

Securities premium 

Capital issue expenses 

Interest Paid 
Net Cash Inflow /(Out Flow) from Financing Activities (C) 

!\et Increase/Decrease in cash & Cash equivalents (A+B+C) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

As at the beginning of the year (Refer Note 9) 

Less : Cash Credit 
As at the end of the year (Refer Note 9) 

Less : Cash Credit 
Net Increase/Decrease in cash & Cash equivalents 

Year ended 31.03.2023 

512.40 

140.33 

203.21 

(31.75) 

(24.31) 

(3.20) 

-
14.81 

811.49 

(20 1 .28) 

156.66 
(036) 

(157.48) 
(l,Q3077) 

27.67 
142.14 

(66 16) 

5.31 

(26123) 

3.41 

(992.02) 

(1 ,562.62) 

135.77 

(1,698.39) 

3.69 

(3,01146) 

575.47 

-
3175 

(2,400.55) 

(1,845.71) 

892.25 
1,020.00 

5,610.00 

(912.69) 

(203.21) 

4,560.64 

461.70 

189.78 
713.73 

1,061.34 

1,123.59 

461.70 

0.00 

Year ended 31.03.2022 

549.25 

100.65 
121.35 

(2 86) 

(8 .06) 

(0.90) 

(0.09) 

-
759.34 

(71.19) 

(64.10) 

-
(7.49) 

(8 60) 

(64.50) 

(131.90) 

(9.97) 

(8.10) 

(0.05) 

(442.43) 

( 48.99) 

30.23 

(79.22) 

2.45 
(I I O I 8) 

(666 69) 
(307.81) 

2.86 
(1,079.37) 

(13830) 

1.395.20 

-
-

(24.43) 

(121.35) 

1,111.12 

(47.47) 

253.69 

737.75 

189.78 

721.31 
(47.47) 

0.00 



Year ended Year ended 
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

I. Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the 

following: 

Cash on hand (INR) 3.89 3.44 

Cash on hand in foreign currency 1.68 0 

Balances with scheduled banks: 

-On current accounts 45.53 186.34 

-On deposit accounts 1,010.24 0 

( deposits having an original maturity of 3 months or less ) 

Cash and cash equivalent as per note 1,061.34 189.78 

II. The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian 

The notes 1 to 71 fonn an integral part of the financial statements. 
This is the Statement of Cash Flows referred to in our report of even date. 

for and on behalf of 
H.R. JAIN & CO., for and on behalf of the Board 

Chartere Accountants 

J1J FRN: Q, ~262C 

,t -f 
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0 
ASAD DAUD HAKIM SADIQ ALI TIDIWALA 

ManoJ ;ty-- :i:· 9 Director Wholetime Director 

Proprietor * * DIN:02491539 DIN: 00119156 
~ J:: 

M.No. 400459 ~ ~ ~,.\i ~ @;~!MOTi Udaipur, May 18,2023 {<: ~" ~Eo ACC\)~ Nv'' ,,-
v~ ( N \ '2--:l~ 0 O lf r9 v-:r-Z?:J 6"1~ LALIT KUMAR BOLIA 

Chief finar l Officer Wholelime Director 

~~ L SAXENA 
Company Secretary 
M.No. 28022 



SAH POLYMERS LIMITED 

"STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 
Name of the Company.- SAi-i POLYMERS LIMITED 
A. Equily Share Capital 

1(1) Cu rrent reportine period (Rs.In lakh) 

Balance at the beginning of the Changes in Eqnily Restated b~lan, at Changes in Balance at the 

current reporting period Share Capital due the beginmng _o

1
thc equity share end of the 

to prior period current reportm capital during current 

errors period the current y rcp011ing 
1oeriod 

1,559.60 ~ 1,020.00 2579.60 

(21 Previous reportinQ period: 
Balance at the beginning of the Changes in Equity ,.,.,oo-,~r Changes in Balance at the 

current rcp01ting period Share Capital due the beginning_o the equity share end of the 
to prior period CUITCllt rcportm capital during CUITCllt 

errors period the current y reporting 

period 

1,559.60 1 1559.60 

B. Other Eouity 

Equity componl nt 
Reserves & Sur1)lus Debt Equity Exchange Other 

Money 
Instruments lnstrumen Effective difference Items of Attributab 

Statutory of compoun~ 
Surplus on through ts through portion of Revaluation other 

received 
le to 

non-

Capital Capital Securities General Business Retained C apita l issue 
on 

agains t controlling 
Reserve financial other other Cash Flow Surplus translating comprehen owners of 

instrument 
Subsidiy Reserve premium Reserve Combinati earnings 

comprehcnsi 
Expenses 

Comp rehe hedges fi nancial s ive 
sha re 

the parent 
in terest 

on ve income nsive difference income 
war rants 

Balance at the end of the 79.75 280.00 89.40 
re1>011i nl! oeriod -31.03.2021 

- - - 449.15 242.95 

Profit for the vear 420.33 (24.43) 395.90 17.21 

Capital issue exncnscs 
Other comprehensive income 

Subsidarv MerJ.!,e -
Issue of Eauitv S hare 
Changes in accounting policy/ 

orior ocriod c1Tors 
Restated balance at the 

beginning of the reporting 

,period 
Total Comprehensive income for 

the vear 
Dividends 
Dividend Distribution Tax 



Ace depreciation adjusted for 

useful Ii re of assets 
Sales of Subsida1y 
Balance at the end of the 

repq_rti_!_l_g__Q_criod -31 .03.2022 
Profit for the year 
Other comprehensive-income 

Acquition ofSubsidary 
Capital issue expenses 

Less:- Capital issue expenses 
On Consolation of Subsidarv 
Transfer to/from 
Amount received against share 
v,1arrants 

On issue of Equity Share Capital 
Changes in accounting policy/ 

I prior period Cll"ors 
Restated balance at the 

beginning of the rep01ting 
loeriod 
Total Comprehensive income for' 
l1he year 
Dividends 

Dividend Dis1ribution Ta~ 
Ace dcprcci,11ion adjusted for 
useful life of assets 
Sales of Subsidary 
Balance at the end of the 
reporting period -31.03.2023 

As per our Repo11 Attached 

for and on behalf of 
HR JAIN & CO., _ 

I

Chartef'id Accountants IN _p 

FRN :(0~0262C ~ ' 

79.75 2so.oo' 

(937 12) 

50610.00 

79.75 40952.88 

Signatures to the Financial Statements and Notes 

~~ 
HAKIM SADIQ ALI TIDIWAL. MURTAZA ALI MOTi 

Wholetime Director Wholetime Director 

M.No. 400459 ACCO DIN: 00119156 DIN 07876224 

Udaipur. May 18,202 /) )<, ; ::J 
\. lY'u f'l 2- 1-->Cr, VJ--z_,,,. 01-lI 

509.73 

341.52 

851.25 

~ 
ASADDAUD 

Director 

DIN: 02491539 

(24.43) 

(91269" 
937.12 

\' 

\ 

~~±::~Jr:::: 
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 

M.No. 28022 

- -

-1 - I - I -1 - I 5,610.00 

~· 

50883.88 294.70 



SAH POLYMERS LIMITED 

NOTE NO. -3 PROPERTY ,PLANT AND EQUIPM 
Particulars 

Year ended March.,2023 

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT 
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 

Additions 

On acauisition ofsubsidiarv 

Disoosals/ Adjustment 

Closinf! Gross Carryinj! Amount 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

OoeninJ?. J\ccumulatcd Depreciation 

Depreciation charl,!,ed durinl,!, the year 

Disposals/ Adjustments 

ClosinJ! Accumulated Oe1ueciation 

Net Carrying Amount 

Year ended March.,2022 

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT 
Opening Gross Carrying A1nount 

Additions 

On acquisition of subsidiary 

Disposals/ Adjus11nent 

Closing Gross Carryinf! Amount 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

O1>eninl! Accumulated Dcorcciation 

Deoreciation charl!cd durinc the vear 

Disoosals/ Ad justmcnts 

Closint! Accumulated Denreciation 

Net Carrying Amount 

Capital Work In Progress Fy. 2022-23* 
C1wital Work In Proe.ress Fy. 2021-22* 

Lease Assets 

Land -Leasehold 

29.57 

-
-
-

29.57 

-

29.57 

29.57 
-
-
-

29.57 

-
-
-
-

29.57 

*includes amount incurred on project development capitalised. 

NT 

Building land Freehold Plant and 
E<1uioment 

438 04 115.96 1,752.98 

1,322.54 - 1,565.37 

- -
- - 9.80 

1,760.58 115.96 3,308.55 

163.21 - 686.53 

22.94 - 91.88 

- - 7.44 

186.15 - 770.97 
1,574.43 115.96 2,537.58 

4 12.07 115.45 1,583.68 
19.70 0.51 80.34 

6.27 88.96 

- - -
438 04 115.96 1,752.98 

148.90 616.62 
14.31 - 69.91 

- -
163.2 1 - 686.53 
274.83 115.96 1,066.45 

Owned Assets 
Furniture and Vehicles Office Equipment 

fixtures 

33.18 26.35 29.70 

33.69 47.58 24.34 

- - -
- - 7.50 

66.87 73.93 46.54 

14.52 22.31 17.71 

5.35 4.14 5.69 

- - 6.17 

19.87 26.45 17.23 
47.00 47.48 29.31 

14.94 2206 22.26 

0.92 0.87 0.59 

17.32 3.42 7.45 

- - 0.60 

33. I 8 26.35 29.70 

11.36 21.52 13.17 
3.16 0.79 5.14 

- - 0 .60 
14.52 22.31 17.71 
18.66 4.04 11.99 

Rs. in lakhs 

DG Sets Tubew<II 

57.28 1.16 

0 .96 5.33 

-
-

58.24 6.49 

29.45 0.49 
2.52 0.07 

- -
31.97 0.56 
26.27 5.93 

57.28 1.16 

-

- -
57.28 1.16 

26.94 0.45 
2.51 0.04 

- -
29.45 0.49 
27.83 0.67 

Computer 

22.51 
11.65 

-
-

34.16 

14.81 
6.50 

-
2131 
12.85 

13.24 
4.93 
4.34 

-
22.51 

11.79 
3.02 
-

14.81 
7.70 

Total 

2,506.73 
3,0 I 1.46 

17.30 
5,500.89 

949.03 

139 09 
13.61 

1,074.51 
4,426.38 

2,271.71 
107.86 
127.76 

0.60 
2,506.73 

850.75 
98.88 

0.60 
949.03 

1,557.70 

92.97 

668.44 



NOTE NO. -3 INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs. in lakhs 

Particulars Owned Assets 
Software Total 

Year ended M arch.,2023 

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT 
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 9.58 9.58 

Addi tions - -
Disoosals/ Adjustment - -
Closing Gross Carrvin~ Amount 9 58 9.58 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -
Ooeninl! Accumulated Dcorcciation 7.82 7.82 

Deoreciation charl!cd durinl! the vear 1.24 1.24 

Disoosals/ Adiusunents - -
Closine: Accumulated De1>reciation 9 OG 9 06 

Net Carrying Amount 0.5~ 0.52 

Year ended March.,2022 

GROSS CARRYING AMOUNT 
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 9 58 9 .58 

Additions - -
Disposals/ Adjustment - -
C losinj!, G ross Carryinv Amount 9.58 9.58 

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION -
Oocninl! Accumulated Denreciation 60~ 6.05 

Dcorcciation charl!ed durinl! the vear 1.77 1.77 

Disoosals/ Adiustments - -
C losine. Accumulated Oenreciation 7.82 7.82 
Net Carrying Amount l.7(i 1.76 

Note: 
(a) There arc no immovable Properties whose title deeds are not in the name of the Company . 

(b) The Company has not revalued Property, P lant and Equipment 

(c) The Company has not revalued its in tangible assets. 

(d) Capilal -Work-in Progress (CW IP) 

CWIP aging schedule as at 3 1/03/2023 

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Less than I year s 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

Proiect in nro~rcss 92.97 - -
Proiects temoorarily susnended - -
CW IP aging schedule as at 3 1/03/2022 

Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of 
Less than I year s 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 

vears 

Proicct in orogress 666.69 175 

Proiects temoorarilv susoendcd - -

( e ) T here i~ no intangible assets under development. 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 

92.97 

Rs. In lakhs 

Total 

- 668.44 

- -



SAH POLYMERS LIMITED 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Note 1: Company Information: 

Sah Polymers Limited (SPL)- parent - is a public limited Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The Registered Office of the SPL is situated at E-260-261, Mewar Industrial Area, 
Madri, Udaipur-313003. 

SPL is engaged in the manufacture of HDPE/PP woven fabrics and sacks . The manufacturing capacities are situated at 
Udaipur (Rajasthan) . The fabrics and sacks find applications in the packing of cement, minerals, food grains etc. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 
Statement of Compliance 
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under 
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the 
relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. 

Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention, except for certain items that are 
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies. 

Fair Value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes 
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and / or disclosure 
purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that 
a re within the scope of Ind AS 102 - Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 -
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in 
Ind AS 2 - Inventories or value in use in Ind AS 36 - Impairment of Assets. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates 
and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of 
revenues and expenses during the year. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period; they are recognised in the period of the revision and future 
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

Basis of Consolidation 
Th e Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. 

Subsidiary is entity controlled by the Group. 

Control and significant influence is assessed annually with reference to the voting power (usually arising from equity 
shareholdings and potential voting rights) and other rights (usually contractual) enjoyed by the Group in its capacity as 
an investor that provides it the power and consequential ability to direct the investee's activities and significantly affect 
the Group's returns from its investment. Such assessment requires the exercise of judgement and is disclosed by way of 
a note to the Financial Statements. The Group is considered not to be in control of entities where it is unclear as to 
whether it enjoys such power over the investee. 

The assets, liabilities, income and expenses of subsidiary are aggregated and consolidated, line by line, from the date 
control is acquired by any Group entity to the date it ceases. Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive 
income are attributed to the Group as owners and to the non-controlling interests. The Group presents the non­
controlling-interests..in. theJ3alance..she.e.Lwi.thin..e.quit.y _se.pa.ca.teLy from the equity of the Group as owners. The excess of 
the Group's investment in a subsidiary over its share in the net worth of such subsidiary on the date control is acquired 
is treated as goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital reserve in the CFS. On disposal of the subsidiary, 
attributable amount on goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss and recognised in the Statement of 

Profit and Loss. 

Impairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is charged off to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) or a group of CGUs to which it relates, which is not larger than an operating segment, and is 
monitored for internal management purposes. 

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of 
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation. 

Operating Cycle 
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group's normal operating cycle and 

other criteria set out in the Schedule JII to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements 
based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in 
cash and cash equivalents. 



Property, Plant and Equipment - Tangible Assets 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost of acquisition or construction less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment, if any. For this purpose, cost includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of property, plant 
and equipment recognised as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. Cost is inclusive of inward freight, 
duties and taxes and incidental expenses related to acquisition. In respect of major projects involving construction, 
related pre-operational expenses form part of the value of assets capitalised. Expenses capitalised also include applicable 
borrowing costs for qualifying assets, if any. All up gradation / enhancements are charged off as revenue expenditure 
unless they bring similar significant additional benefits. 

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of asset. 
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the 

difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. 

Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use which is generally on 
commissioning. Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated in a manner that amortizes the cost (or other 
amount substituted for cost) of the asset s after commissioning, less its residual value, over their useful lives as specified 
in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 on a straight line basis. Land is not depreciated. 

Assets in the course of construction are capitalised in the assets under capital work in progress account 
(CWIP). At the point when an asset is operating at management's intended use, the cost of construction is 
transferred to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment and depreciation commences. Where 
an obligation (legal or constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former 
condition at the end of its useful life, the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or 
restoring the site is capitalized along with the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a 
corresponding liability is recognized. Revenue generated from production during the trial period is capitalised. 

• Freehold land is not depreciated 

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment of the Group are as follows: 
Buildings 30 Years 
Plant and Equipment 7 - 25 Years 
Furniture and Fixtures 
Vehicles 
Office Equipment 

8 - 10 Years 
8 - 10 Years 
5 Years 

No write off is made in respect of leasehold land. 

Assets held under finance leases a re depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, 
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. 

Property, plant and equipment's residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and changes, if 
any, are treated as changes in accounting estimate. 

Goodwill on Consolidation 
Goodwill arising on consolidation is stated at cost less impairment losses, where applicable. On disposal of a subsidiary, 
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss recognised in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss. On acquisition of an associate, the goodwill / capital reserve arising from such acquisition is included in the 
carrying amount of the investment and also disclosed separately. 

Impairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceed the recoverable amount is charged off to the Statement 
of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit 
(CGU) or group of CGUs to which it relates, which is not larger than an operating segment, and is monitored for internal 
management purposes. 

Intangible Assets 
Intangible Assets that the Company controls and from which it expects future economic benefits are capitalised upon 
acquisition and measured initially: 

a . for assets acquired in a business combination or by way of a government grant , at fair value on the date of 
acquisition/ grant 

b. for separately acquired assets, at cost comprising the purchase price (including import duties and nonrefundable 
taxes) and d irectly attributable costs to prepare the asset for its intended use. 

Internally generated assets for which the cost is clearly identifiable a re capitalised at cost. Research expenditure is 
recognised as an expense when it is incurred. Development costs are capitalised only after the technical and commercial 
feasibility of the asset for sale or use has been established. Thereafter, a ll directly attributable expenditure incurred to 
prepare the asset for its intended use are recognised as the cost of such assets. Internally generated brands, websites 
an d customer lists are not recognised as intangible assets. 

The carrying value of intangible assets includes deemed cost which represents the carrying value of intangible assets 
recognised as at 1st April, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP. 



Intangible assets that have finite lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives by the straight line method unless it 
is practical to reliably determine the pattern of benefits arising from the asset. An intangible asset with an indefinite 
useful life is not amortized. 

All intangible assets are tested for impairment. Amortization expenses and impairment losses and reversal of impairment 
losses are taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Thus, after initial recognition, an intangible asset is carried at its cost less accumulated amortization and / or 
impairment losses. The useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed annually to determine if a reset of such useful life is 
required for assets with finite lives and to confirm that business circumstances continue to support an indefinite useful 
life assessment for assets so classified. Based on such review, the useful life may change or the useful life assessment 
may change from indefinite to finite . The impact of such changes is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets of the Company is · 5 years 

Impairment of Assets 
Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent, the carrying amount of assets or cash generating units exceed their 
recoverable amount. 
Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of 

estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash generating unit and from its 
disposal at the end of its useful life. 

Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there is an indication that the impairment losses 
recognised no longer exist or have decreased. Such reversals are recognised as an increase in carrying amounts of assets 
to the extent that it does not exceed the carrying amounts that would have been determined (net of amortization or 
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised in previous years. 

Inventories 
Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is calculated on FIFIO method. Cost comprises 
expenditure incurred in the normal course of business in bringing such inventories to its present location and condition 
and includes, where applicable, appropriate overheads based on normal level of activity. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price less estimated costs for completion and sale. 

Obsolete, slow moving and defective inventories are identified from time to time and, where necessary, a provision is 

made for such inventories. 

Foreign Currency Transactions 

The presentation currency of the Group is Indian Rupee. Transactions in foreign currency are accounted for at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the transaction date. Gains / losses arising on settlement as also on translation of monetary 
items are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Exchange differences arising on monetary items that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in a foreign 
operation (having a functional currency other than Indian Rupee) are accumulated in foreign currency translation 
reserve. 

For the preparation of the consolidated financial statements: 
(a) assets and liabilities of foreign operations, together with goodwill and fair value adjustments assumed on acquisition 
thereof, are translated to Indian Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting period end; 

(b) income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period; when exchange 
rates fluctuate significantly the rates prevailing on the transaction date are used instead. 

Differences arising on such translation are accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve and attributed to non­
controlling interests proportionately 

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation 
attributable to the owners of the Group is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. In relation to a partial disposal, 
that does not result in losing control over t he subsidiary, the proportionate exchange differences accumulated in equity is 
reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Financial instruments, Financial assets, Financial liabilities and Equity instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

tche relevant instrument and are-initiall.)'-ffieasured aWaiL-value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities 
measured at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value on initial recognition of 
financial assets or financial liabilities. Purchase or sale of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time 
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, 
i.e., the date when the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. 



Financial Assets 
Recognition: 
Financial assets include Investments, Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents. Such 
assets are initially recognised at transaction price when the Group becomes party to contractual obligations. The 
transaction price includes transaction costs unless the asset is being fair valued through the Statement of Profit and 
Loss. 

Classification: 
Management determines the classification of an asset at initial recognition depending on the purpose for which the 

assets were acquired. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on such classification. 

Financial assets are classified as those measured at: 
(a) amortised cost, where the financial assets are held solely for collection of cash flows arising from payments of 

principal and/ or interest. 

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), where the financial assets are held not only for collection of 
cash flows arising from payments of principal and interest but also from the sale of such assets. Such assets are 
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 

(c) fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), where the assets are managed in accordance with an approved investment 
strategy that triggers purchase and sale decisions based on the fair value of such assets. Such assets are subsequently 
measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value being recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 

Trade receivables, Advances, Security Deposits, Cash and cash equivalents etc. are classified for measurement at 
amortised cost while investments may fall under any of the aforesaid classes. However, in respect of particular 
investments in equity instruments that would otherwise be measured at fair value through profit or loss, an irrevocable 
election at initial recognition may be made to present subsequent changes in fair value through other comprehensive 
income. 

Impairment: 
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset (or a group of financial assets) such as investments, 
trade receivables, advances and security deposits held at amortised cost and financial assets that are measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income are tested for impairment based on evidence or information that is available 
without undue cost or effort. Expected credit losses are assessed and loss allowances recognised if the credit quality of 
the financial asset has deteriorated significantly since initial recognition. 

Reclassification: When and only when the business model is changed, the Group shall reclassify all affected financial 
assets prospectively from the reclassification date as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other 
comprehensive income, fair value through profit or loss without restating the previously recognised gains, losses or 
interest and in terms of the reclassification principles laid down in the Ind AS relating to Financial Instruments. 

De-recognition: Financial assets are derecognised when the right to receive cash flows from the assets has expired, or 
has been transferred, and the Company has transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership. 
Concomitantly, if the asset is one that is measured at: 

(a) amortised cost, the gain or loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss; 

(b) fair value through other comprehensive income, the cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves 
are reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless the asset represents an equity investment in which case the 
cumulative fair value adjustments previously taken to reserves is reclassified within equity. 

Income Recognition: 
Interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss using the effective interest method. Dividend 
income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the right to receive dividend is established. 

I-F..inanciaLLiabilities_ 
Borrowings, trade payables and other financial liabilities are initially recognised at the value of the respective 
contractual obligations. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any discount or premium on 
redemption / settlement is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss as finance cost over the life of the 
liability using the effective interest method and adjusted to the liability figure disclosed in the Balance Sheet. 

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the liability is extinguished, that is, when the contractual obligation 
is discharged, cancelled and on expiry. 

Offsetting Financial Instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is included in the Balance Sheet where there is a 

legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or 
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Equity Instruments 
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue. 



Revenue 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods supplied and 
services rendered, net of returns and discounts to customers. Revenue from the sale of goods includes excise 
and other duties which the Group pays as a principal but excludes amounts collected on behalf of third 
parties, such as sales tax and value added tax. 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the customer, which is mainly upon delivery, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably 
and recovery of the consideration is probable. Revenue from services is recognised in the periods in which the 
services are rendered. 
Government Grant 
The Group may receive government grants that require compliance with certain conditions related to the 
Group's operating activities or are provided to the Group by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain 
qualifying criteria. 
Government grants are recognised when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the 
Group will comply with the conditions attached to the grant. Accordingly, government grants: 

(a) related to or used for assets are included in the Balance Sheet as deferred income and recognised as 
income over the useful life of the assets. 

(b) related to incurring specific expenditures are taken to the Statement of Profit and Loss on the same basis 
and in the same periods as the expenditures incurred. 

(c) by way of financial assistance on the basis of certain qualifying criteria are recognised as they become 
receivable. 

In the unlikely event that a grant previously recognised is ultimately not received, it is treated as a change in 
estimate and the amount cumulatively recognised is expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Employee Benefits 
i) Short-term Employee benefits Liabilities for wages and salaries including nonmonetary benefits that are 
expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render 
the related service are classified as short term employee benefits and are recognized as an expense in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected 
to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past 
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

iii) Post-Employment Benefits Defined Contribution Plans 
Payments made to a defined contribution plan such as Provident Fund maintained with Regional Provident 
Fund Office and Superannuation Fund are charged as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss as they 
fall due. 

Defined Benefit Plans 
Gratuity Fund 
The Group has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees. 
Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on death or on separation/ termination in terms of the provisions 
of the payment of the Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 1997 or as per the Company's scheme whichever is more 
beneficial to the employees. 

Provident Fund 
The contributions to the Provident Fund of employees are made to a Government administered Provident 

Fund and_ther.e. ar.e_no_fur.th.er obligations beyond_making su.ch...con tribu tion. 

iv) Other Long Term Employee Benefits 

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the 
end of the period in which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the 
present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by the employees upto 
the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method 

Re-measurements are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Actuarial gains and losses 
in respect of such benefits are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. 

Leases 
Leases are recognised as a finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks 



Group as a Lessee 
Assets used under finance leases are recognised as property, plant and equipment in the Balance Sheet for an 
amount that corresponds to the lower of fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments 
determined at the inception of the lease and a liability is recognised for an equivalent amount. 

The minimum lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so 
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are 
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the relevant lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases. 

Group as a Lessor 
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset 

are classified as operating leases. Where the Group is a lessor under an operating lease, the asset is 
capitalised within property, plant and equipment and depreciated over its useful economic life. Payments 
received under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over 

the term of the lease. 

Taxes on Income 
Taxes on income comprises of current taxes and defer red taxes. Current tax in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss is provided as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the period using tax rates and 
tax laws enacted during the period, together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years. 

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and 
the amounts used for taxation purposes (tax base), at the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively 

enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for the future tax consequences to the extent it is probable that future 
taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

Income tax, in so far as it relates to items disclosed under other comprehensive income or equity, are 
d isclosed separately under other comprehensive income or equity, as applicable. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets 
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances related to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets 
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle 
on net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 

Claims 
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts are disclosed after a careful evaluation of the facts and 

legal aspects of the matter involved. 

Provisions 
Provisions are recognised when, as a result of a past event, the Group has a legal or constructive obligation; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount can be reliably estimated. 
The amount so recognised is a best estimate of the consideration required to settle the obligation at the reporting date, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. In an event when the time value of money is 
material, the provision is carried at the present value of the cash flows estimated to settle the obligation. 

Operating Segments 
Op.e.cating_sl'.gmeots are_i:e.ported in a mann.er_ con.si.stent wjth the internal reporting provided to the chief operating 
decision-maker (CODM). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the 
operating segments, has been identified as the Corporate Management Committee 

Segments are organised based on business which have similar economic characteristics as well as exhibit similarities in 
nature of products and services offered, the nature of product ion processes, the type and class of customer and 
distribution methods. 

Segment revenue arising from third party customers is reported on the same basis as revenue in the financial 
statements. Inter-segment revenue is reported on the basis of transactions which are primarily market led. Segment 
results represent profits before finance charges, unallocated corporate expenses and taxes. 

"Unallocated Corporate Expenses" include revenue and expenses that relate to initiatives/costs attributable to the 
enterprise as a whole and are not attributable to segments. 
Financial and Management Information Systems 
The Group's Accounting System is designed to comply with the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, to 
provide financial information appropriate to the businesses and facilitate Internal Control. 



Use of estimates and judgements 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 

management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure 
of contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period 
end. Although these estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of current events and actions, actual 
results could differ from these estimates. 

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are 
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

A. Judgements in applying accounting policies 
The following are the judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see note below), that the Group have made in 
the process of applying the accounting policies and that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the 
consolidated financial statements: 

1. Control: 
The Group assessed whether or not it has control on its investees based on whether, as an investor, it has the 
power/rights and consequently the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of its investees unilaterally. In making 
this judgement, the Group considered the absolute size of its holding, the relative size of and dispersion of other 
shareholders, and whether any contractual arrangements exist between the Company (and its subsidiaries) and other 
shareholders of the investees. Based on this, and in accordance with its Accounting Policy, the Group has determined 
that the entities listed in the notes to the financial statements are the only entities over which Group has control. 

2. Significant influence: 
The Group assessed whether or not it has significant influence on its investees based on its practical ability to participate 
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, though it is not in control of these policies. Based on such 
assessment, the Group determined that the entities listed in the notes to the financial statements are the only entities 
over which the Group has significant influence. 

3. Useful life of Intangible Assets: 
The Group is required to determine whether its intangible assets have indefinite or finite life which is a subject matter of 
judgement. 
B. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty 

at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

1. Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets: 
As described in the significant accounting policies, the Group reviews the estimated useful lives of property, 

plant and equipment and intangible assets at the end of each reporting period. 

2. Fair value measurements and valuation processes: 
Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the 
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information 
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair value of various assets, liabilities and share 
based payments are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

3. Actuarial Valuation: 
The determination of Group's liability towards defined benefit obligation to employees is made through independent 
actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other 
comprehensive income. Such valuation depend upon assumptions determined after taking into account inflation, 
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply and demand factors in the employment market. 
Information about such valuation is provided in notes to the financial statements. 

4. Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities: 
In res~t of litigations where_ an outflow of funds is believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the 
dispute can be made based on management's assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external 
advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take 
number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in notes 

to the financial statements. 



SAIi POLY~IERS LIMITED 
NOTES FOR,IING PART OF THE CONSOLWATE0 STATEMENT 

Note 4 (Rs In Lakhsl 

Fl"IANCJAL LOA"! NON -CURRENT As at 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022 

(Unsecured ,Considered good) 
(a) Loan Receivables considered good- secured 
( b) Loan Receivables considered good- unsecured 1.97 

(c) Loan Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
(d) Trade Receivables- credit impaired 

1.97 

Less: Allowance for doubtful loans 
1.97 

Notr 5 
OTHER NON- CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS As a, 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022 

Security Deposits 133_04 66 88 

133.04 6688 

~OH' 6 

OTHER NON- '"RRENT ASSETS As al 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022 

Capital Advances 0.65 146.90 

Advances other than capital advances : 

Security Deposit 
-With Statutory Authorities 0.92 0 .92 

,-Other 4. 11 
5.68 147 82 

.. 
INVENTORIES As al 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022 
N I 7 

At lower of cost and net realisable value 
Raw material 759.42 570. 72 

Work-in -progress 1.039.40 587.51 

Finished Goods 557.95 291.17 

Stores and Spares 162.99 95.49 

Printing Ink 31.60 14.45 

2.55 1.]6 1.559.34 

Nott 8 
TRADE RECEIVABLE As a1 31.03.2023 As a1 31.03.2022 

(a) Trade Receivables considered good- secured 
(b) Trade Receivables considered good- unsecured 1.614 37 1,385.58 

(c)Trade Receivables which have sil!.nificant increase in Credit 
(d) Trade Receivables -Credit impaired 

1.614.37 ).385.58 

Less: Allowance for doubtful receivables 
1,614.37 1.385.58 

Note 8.1 :No trade receivables arc due from directors or other ofl1cers ot the Company or any of them either severally or JOmtly with any other person. l·urther, no 
trade receivables arc due from finns or private companies in which any directo r is a partner, a director or a member. other than dues from related parties disclm,ed as 

mentioned in note 37 

Tradt receivables aneinn schedule as at 31st March 2023 
Particulars Outstandin~ for followin2 oeriods from dur- date or I avmrnt 

Less than 6 6 months- I yur l-2n:trs 2-3 years More than 3 :vears 

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1.41 1.59 66 02 136.76 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
Total 1,411.59 66.02 136.76 

Trade recciv·,bles ageing schedule as at 31st i\'larch 2022 

Particulars Outstanding ror following periods rrom due date or p:1yment 

Less 1han 6 6 months- I yur 1-2nars 2-3 ,,tars More than 3 years 

(i)Ufld1sputcd I rade recewabies considered good . "-'t.). 15" - 0.51 0.17 30.51 108.63 

(ii) Undisputed Trade receivables - which have significant 

increase in credit risk 
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables- considered good 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired 
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables- whic-h have significant 

increase in credit risk 
Total 1,245.76 0.51 0.17 30.51 108.63 

~ote 9 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As al 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022 

(a) Balances with banks 
i)On Current Account 45.53 186.34 

ii) Cheques on hand 
(iii) on Fixed Deposit w ith maturity less three months• 1.0 10 24 

1.055.77 186.34 

b) Cash on hand (fNR) 3.89 3-44 

c) Cash on hand in foreign Currency 1.68 
J.061.34 189.78 

•mdu<lcs (lcc rued mtcrcst Rs 10 2-1 laUis 1_pre,·1<1u~ ~t·ar K~.Nlll 
ll1li-c arc no rq1-1\ri(l11on restm::uons \\ 1th n11M<l 11,:i cash and ca sh cq11irnlent~ as a l the,.-.,,! ,,fthe rq·,ortmj!. 1x:riod am! pnor pcrmJ 

Total 
1.614.37 

-

1,614.37 

Total 
1,385-58 

J.385.58 



Note 10 
OTHER RANK BALANCES As :ti 31.03.2023 As :ti 31.03.2022 

Deposit with more than 3 months and remaining maturity period less than 1'.! months I from the date of the balance sheet •tu 1,089 99 I 59,22 

I 1.089.99 I 59.22 

•rndude,- accmeJ mtcre,;1 Rs. 12.72 Jal.Ji~ (pn'\'t (II.L~ year Rs. 2 72 l111..hs) 

•• includes dcposus Rs. 74 55 lukhs (pr ~T Rs. 56 lakhs) 1m;ludmi accrued mll'fC"~l hen wuh the lxmk ilftains, hank guarnnlt-c 

N t II , or 
LOANS rc1;RRENT\ As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

(a) Loan Receivables considered good- secured 
(b) Loan Receivables considered good- unsecured 840.73 685.22 

(c) Loan Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 
(d) Trade Receivables- credit impaired 

840 73 685.22 

Less: Allowance for doubtful loans 
8~0.73 685.22 

· Note 11. 1 :No loans are due from directors or other officers of the Company or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person. Further. no loans are due 
from finns or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, other than dues from related panics disclosed as mentioned in note 37. 

No loans and advances are due from directors or other officers and related party of 1hc Com pan~ 

Loans or ad, ances in the nature of loans granted to promoters. dircc1ors . K.MPS and the related parties 
(a)Rcp3,·able on demand or (b) \\ithout spceifring tenns of period of rcpavment 

Amount of loan or Percentagt to the 

Type of Borrower 
adwmce in the total Loans & 

nature of Ad\'ances in the 

outstanding natur·e of Loans 

Promoters 0 0 
(01 m: 

Directors 0 0 
(0) (0' 

KMP's 2.50 0.21 
(0) (0) 

Related Panics 0 0 
(0) (0 

Total 2.50 0.21 
(0) (0) 

•mnounl in bracket represents prc,·ious year's ligurtS 

Nott 12 
OTHER- CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS As at 31.03.2023 As al 31.03.2022 

-Interest accrued on loan, deposit etc. I 6.96 I 12.27 

I 6.96 I 12.27 

Note 13 
URRENT TAX ASSETS As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Income tax Refund 3.4 1 
341 

Note 14 
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Advances other lhan capital advances : 

Other advances : 
-advance against expenses 21.50 12.63 

- GST receivable 387.72 116.34 

-pre-paid expenses 11.88 

,-Other receivables 42.46 49.60 

-MEIS Receivable 3105 3 1.05 

482.73 221.50 

SHARE CAPITAL: As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Authorised · 
3,00,00,000 Equity Shares ofRs.10/- each 3.000.00 3.000 00 

3.000.00 3.000 00 

Issued. subscribed and fully paid 
25796000(pr yr 15596000) Equily Shares of Rs. IOI- each 2,579.60 1,559.60 

ful~ paid up -- 2,579.60 1,559.60 

Reconciliation of number of shar(1s : As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Face value per share (Rs.) 10 10 

Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the beginning of the reponing period 1.55,96,000 1.55,96.000 

No. of Equity Shares issued during the year 1.02.00,000 
2,57,96,000 1.55.96,000 

Less Deduction during the year 
Number of Equity Shares outstanding at the end of the 2,57,961000 1,55,96.000 

reooning oeriod 

Name oft he shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Name of shareholder IClass No_ of shares I % No. of shares I % 

Sat Industries Limited and nominees IEauity 143 160001 55.50 143160001 9 1 79 

Sat Invest Private Limited lEnuity 12800001 4.96 12800001 8.2 1 



Shares held bv ornmoters at the end of the vear 
Promoter name No of shares ~O of iota! shares 

% change durin~ the vcar 

Sat Industries Limited including shares held by nominees 14316000 55 50 (91 79) 36 29•• 

( 14316000) 
143 16000 55.50 (91 79) 36.29** 

Total (143 16000\ 

F 1gun:s m brnckl·l represent pre, ,ou~ year figures 

• Con~idcred as per 1hc mform:ition tikJ ~- the ComJXln~ ,Hth s1ocl.. exchanges for lht: ~c.ir c;.,1.Jed March 31. 2023 and Annu;il n:\11m tik-J b~ the Comp:my for tht: yt:.:ir ,-nJ1,..-d M.'.'lrch 31.ltl:!:! 

0 ch:mgl-<l '-X:curred due to ini1ial rubhc offer b~ lhe Company 

Shares held b holding Com any As :ll 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Class No.of shares % Holdim! No.of shares % Holding Name of holding Com any 
Sat Industries Limi1ed and nominees E uil 14316000 55.50 14316000 91.79 

The Parent has only one class of equity shares having face value of Rs. 10/- each. The holder of the equity share is en1itled to dividend right and voting 

r ight in the same proponion as the capttal paid-up on such equity share bears to the 1otal paid-up equity share capital of the Parent. The dividend proposed 
by Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. except in case of interim dividend In the event of 
liquidation of the Parent , the holders of equity shares ,viii be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Parent in the same proportion as the capital paid 

up on the equity shares held by thern bears to the total paid-up equity share capital of the Parent 
The Parent Company has not al\01ted any shares pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash. 

There are no call unpaid on equity shares 
No shares have been reserved for issue on option 
No eQuitv shares have been forfeited 

Nott 16 
OTHER EQUITY 

Particulars As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

l.SEURJTIES PREMIUM 
As per the last year accounts 280.00 

Add: Addition during the year 5.610.00 

Less:- Transferred from Capital Issue Expenses• (937 12) 
4.952 88 

2 GENERAL RESERVE 
As per the last year accounts 79.75 

3.CAPIT AL ISSUE EXPENSES 
As per the last year accounts (24.43) 

Addition durin~ the year (912.69) 

Less: Transferred to securities premium 937.1 2 

4 . RETAINED EARNINGS 
As per the last year accounts 509.73 

Add: Surplus for the year 341.52 
851.25 

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 5.88388 

Non-controllinL?. interest 294.70 

TOTAL 6,178.58 

• Public m,uc t:'ipcnscs omount1ng to Rs. 9H 12 lokhs have tx.-cn adJu~tc;.'1 o~mnst SL-cunl1c~ Prc11m11n m accordance with the p!0\'1~1N1s of section )2 (1(1he Comp:1111cs Aci.2013 

1. Share Premium : 

The amount rccci\·cd in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. The rcscn·c is utilised in accordance with the prO\'isions of the Act 

2. General Rcscn·e 

This includes the amount rccei\'cd from the Government under an incentive scheme for c:ipital expansion :md on the expi0 of rcquisi1e period . the amounl was transferred to it. 

3.Rctaincd E:imings: 

280.00 

280 00 

79.75 

(2443) 

(24.43) 

89.40 
420.33 
509 73 
845.05 

260. 16 
1,105.21 

This Rcsen·e represents the cunmla1ive profits of thc Company and effects of re-measurement of defined benefit obhgations. This Rescn·c can be utilized in accord:mcc mth the prO\isions 

of the Companies Act. 2013 

Note 17 

BORROWINGS -NON CURRENT: As al 31.03.2023 As al 3 1.03.2022 

Current Non-Current Current Non-Current 

SECURED: 

(a) Term Loans: 
from banks: 
UCO Bank: 
I Term Loan- UCO CoVld-19 Emergency credit line (UCECL) 3 59 

~ Loan- Additional workin~ capital term loan under guarantee emergency credit 39.87 2.94 37.46 46.52 

loan -
Ill Term Loan- Guaranteed Emer12;cncy Credit Line(GECL) 5.57 78.32 84.67 

JV 'lndusind Bank -FCTL(EPC) 10.44 

V 'lndusind Bank -ELCGS 11.24 14.04 

Vl Tenn Loan 200.00 733 33 

VII Term Loan-Vehicle Loan 4.88 12.38 

Ylll Tern, Loan- HDFC Bank 4.3 1 18.61 

254.63 845.58 62.73 145.23 

(I) Borrowings from UCO Bank is secured against equitable mongage of land and building of the Parent Company situated at E-260-261, Mewar Industrial Arca, 
Madri, Udaipur-313003 and by way of first charge on all current assets such as raw material, finished goods. work -in progress, stores and spares, book debts, and 
packing materials etc. The loan is repayable in 18 equal monthly instalments of Rs. -t 11750.00 each commencing from December 8th,2020 and the las1 instalment is 
repayable on May 07, 2022.Rate of interest as on 31.03.2023 is 7.30 % per annum. It is also secured by way of personal guarantee of Mr. Asad Daud, Director of 

the Parent Company 

(II) Borrowings from UCO Bank is secured against equitable mongage ofland and building of the Parent Company situated at E-260-261. Mewar Industrial Area, 
Madri, Udaipur-3 13003 and by way of first charge on all current assets such as raw material, finished goods. work -in progress, stores and spares. book debts, and 
packing materials etc. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments Rs. 354611.00 each commencing from June 14th. 2021 and the last instalment is repayable 
on June 14,2024 Rate of interest as on 31.03.2023 is 9.2S % per annum.It is also secured by way of personal guarantee of Mr. Asad Daud,Direc1or of the Parent 

Company. 



(I ll) Borro\\htgs from UCO Bank is secured against equitable mortgage of land and building of the Parent Company situated at £-260-261, Mcwar Industrial Area, 
Madri. Udaipur-313003 and by way of first charge on all current assets such as raw material. finished goods. work -in progress, stores and spares. book deb1s. and 
packing materials etc. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments Rs 2633 76 35 each commencing from December l 5th. 2023 and the last instalment is 
repayable on December I ~.2026 Rate of interest as on 31 .03 .2023 is 9.25 % per annum. It is also secured by way of personal guarantee of Mr. Asad Daud. Director 

of the Parent Company. 

(IV) Borrowings from lndusind Bank is secured against first charge over all present and future, current assets and mpvable fixed assets of the Subsidiary Company 
situated at G- 1 202-203.IID center RJICO. kaladwas, Udaipur-313003. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments of Euro 1380.04 each commencing 
from December 27th.2019 and the last instalment is repayable on December 22. 2022.Ratc of interest as on 31.03.2022 is 8.25 ¾ per annum. It is also secured by 
personal guarantee of directors Mr.Murtaza Ali Moti and Mrs. Fatima Moti. Euro 12420.45 payable@ exchange rate of Rs. 84.062 as on March 31,2022 (Pr. yr. Euro 

28980.93@exchange rate of Rs. 86.099) 

(V) Borrowings from Indusind Bank is secured against second charge ove-r al l present and future, current assets and movable fixed assets of1he subsidiary Company 
si1uated at G-1 202-203.11D center RIICO. kaladwas, Udaipur-313003. The loan is repayable in 35 monthly instalments as per EM! schedule commencing from July 

3 1 st,2021 and the last instalment is repayable on June 30, 2024.Rate of interest as on 31.03.2022 is 9.25 % per annum. It is also secured by personal guarantee of 

directors Mr.Murtaza AJi Moti and Mrs. Fatima Moti. 

(VI) Borro\\fo,gs from UCO Bank is secured against equi1able mortgage of land and building of the Company situated at E-260-261, Mewar Industrial Area, Madri. 
Udaipur-3 13003 and by way of first charge on all current assets such as raw material , finished goods. work -in progress, stores and spares. book debts. and packing 
materials etc. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments Rs. 1666667.00 each commencing from December 15th, 2023 and the last instalment is repayable 

on June 15,2028 Rate or interest as on 3 1.03.2023 is I 0. 95 % per annum It is also secured by way of personal guarantee of Mr. Asad Daud,Director of the 

Company. 

(VII) Borrowings from UCO Bank is secured against Hypothecation of Vehicle No. RJ27UE0279. The loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly ins1alments Rs. 
40649.00 each commencing from June 06th, 2022 and the last instalment is repayable on May 31,2027 Rate of interest as on 31.03.2023 is 10.20 % per annum. 

(VII ) Borrowinns from HDFC bank is secured a~ainst Hvnothecation of Vehicle No.RJ27GEOl 53 The loan is renavable in 60 enual monthly instalments Rs 

There is no continuinu: default in the payment of interest 

Note- 18 

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET) As at 31.03.2023 As 11t 31.03.2022 

a) Deferred tax liability 143.13 142.67 

Add: Opening Balance of Subsidiary (2.35) 

Depreciation-Provision 7829 2.81 

Deferred tax assets 
Leave encashmen1 &gratuity (provisions) etc 0. 11 

Net amount charged to Statement of Profil and Loss 78. 18 2.81 

Deferred tax li abilities(net) 2213 1 143.13 

b)MAT Credit Entitlement 53. 13 
168.18 143.13 

Notr 19 

BORROWINGS -CURRENT : As at 3 1.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

SECURED: 

Current maturity of Long term debt@ 254.63 62.73 

j!,_for~..:urir:, etc rl.'fcrNotc 17 

Re1>aya ble on demand 

from banks: 
Cash Credit facilities from UCO Bank (a) 1, 123.59 681.98 

Cash Credit ale with indusind Bank (b) 31.75 

I, 123.59 713 73 

UNSECURED : 
Repayable on demand 

F rom Bank 
Deutsche Bank (pcfc) (c) 158.52 

ICICI Bank Ltd (d) 280.00 270.33 

Deutsche Bank -OD (e) 0.99 94 70 

Indusind Bank -FCTL(EPC) (t) 105.42 

0 th,.,, 
Other than related parties (g) 

713. 15 

From related party- Holding company 780.00 

Sat l ndus1ries Limited 
280.99 2,122.12 

1,659.21 2,898.58 

(a) Borrowings from UCO Bank is secured against equitable mortgage ofland and building of the Parent Company situated at E-260-261, Mewar Industrial Area, 
~atht,- t,daipur-'311003-anctby-way·offirst"'dfflrge-on-a¼kurrent-assetttucn-flHaw-ma1eriah-finished goods, work -in progress, stores and spares .. book debts, and 
packing materials etc. of the Paren1 Company. It is also secured by way of personal guarantee of Mr_ Asad Daud, Director of the Parent Company Ra1e of interest as 

on 31.03.2023 is 11.20 % per annum .. 

(ai) Includes also cash credit facilities availed by the subsidiary -Fibcorp Pol)'\Veave Private Limited amounting to Rs. 241.48 lakhs. The same is secured by way of 

first charge on all current assets such as raw material , finished goods, work -in progress, stores and spares , book debts, and packing materials etc. of the subsidiary 
Company situated at G-1 202-203, IID center Rl JCO, kaladwas , Udaipur . It is also secured by way of personal guarantee of Mr. Murtaza Moti. Director of the 

Company Rate of interest as on 31.03.2023 is 11.20 % per annum. 

(b) Borrowings from Indusind Bank is secured against stock of raw material, WIP & finished goods held for export by the subsidiary Company situated at G- 1 202-

203,110 center RIICO, kaladwas , Udaipur-J 13003 

(c) Guaranteed by Mr Asad Daud ,Director and Mr. Hakim Sadiq Ali Tidi,.,,·ala, Wholetime Director of 1he parent company. Rate of interest as on 31.03.2023 is 

LIBOR+350 bps. 

(d) Guaranteed by Mr.Asad Daud ,Director and Mr. Hakim Sadiq Ali Tidiwala ,Wholetime Director of the Parent Company. Rate of interest as on 31.03.2023 is 

10.80% per annum 

(e) Guaranteed by Mr.Asad Daud, Direc1or and Mr. Hakim Sadiq AJi Tidiwala ,Wholetime Director of the Parent Company. Rate of interest as on J 1.03.2023 is 

9.95% per annum . 

(f) Borrowings from lndusind Bank is secured against stock of raw material, WIP & finished goods held for export by the SubsidiaT)· Company situated at G-1 202-

203, IID center RIICO, kaladwas, Udaipur-3 13003 

(g) Guaranteed by Mr.Asad Daud,Director and Mr. Hakim Sadiq Ali Tidiwala ,Wholet ime Director of the Parent Company Rate of interest as on 31.03.2023 is 

12.00% per annum . 

There is no continuing default in the payment of interest 



TRADE PAYABLES As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 813.o7 785.40 

813.07 785.40 

Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2023 

Pnrticul,ns Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 6 months- I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years TOTAL 

(i) Undisputed -Micro & small enterprises 

(ii) Undispu1ed Others 812 02 812.02 

(iii) Disputed dues ~ Micro & small enterprises 

(iv) Disputed dues• Others 0.40 0.65 I.OS 

Tot.ii 81242 065 813.07 

Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31st March 2022 

Part iculars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 6 6 months- 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years TOTAL 

(i) Undisputed -Micro & small enterprises 

(ii) Undisputed Others 782.85 1.45 0.40 0.68 785.38 

(iii) Disputed dues - Micro & small enterprises 

(iv) Disputed dues - Others 0.02 0.02 

Tot:i.l 782.85 I 45 0.40 0 .70 785.40 

Nott 21 
OTHER- CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABJLl"J"ll:S As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Interest on loan I 2.10 I 2 46 

I 2.10 I 2.46 

Note 22 
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

OTHER CllRENT LIABILITIES 

Statutory Liabilities 57.98 46.69 

Advance received from customers 74.38 32.87 

Others 155.09 51.23 

287.45 130.79 

Note 23 
As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

PROVISIONS 

Provision for employee benefits 14.81 
14 81 

Note 24 
CURRENT T AX LIABILITIES As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

Current tax ( net of advance tax ) 67.27 96.33 

67.27 96.33 

Note 25 
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS For the year For tht year 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

(a) Manufactured Goods 8.706 79 6,469.86 

(b) Traded Goods : 635.86 1.242.50 

(c) Sale of Services 
l) Job work 28.82 64.25 

II) Commission-DCA 62.29 76.27 

lll) Market Research Services 90.24 

91.11 230.76 

(d) Interest income (Business) 10616 108 02 

9.539.92 8,051.14 

Note "6 -
OTHER INCOME For the year For the year 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

(a) Rent 0.42 0.48 

(b) Interest on financial assets on amortised cost 3 1.75 2 86 

(c) Miscellaneous income I. I I 3.07 

"(l!J~n Enli1illJlTT1rnul!inm- -- 148.42 50.33 

(e) Interest on Income tax Refund 0 04 

(f) Subsidy -RJPS 15.53 

181.70 72.31 

Nott> 27 ' COST OF MATERIAL CONSUMED For the year For the year 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

Opening Stock 570.72 202.92 

Add: Opening of Subsidy on consolidation 322.32 

Purchases 5,880.20 4.777 04 

6,450.92 5_302.28 

Less· Closing Stock 759.42 570.72 

5.691.50 4. 73156 

Nolf." 28 I 

PURCHASES OF STOCK -IN TRADE For the year For the year 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

Traded goods 630.73 1,232. 15 

630.73 1.232. I~ 



Not, 29 
CHANGES IN INVE1'TORIES For the yur For the year 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

Opening Stock · 
Finished Goods 291.17 105 5g 

Add. Opening of Subsidy on consolidation 209.00 

Add.- Goods produced during trial run 12 73 

303.90 3 14.59 

Work-in-progress 587.51 232.85 

Add:- Goods produced during trial run 118.66 
706 17 1,010.07 547.44 

Less ·Closing Stock : 
Finished Goods 557.95 291.17 

\\lark-in-progress 1.039 40 587.51 
1,597.35 878.68 

(587.28) (331.24) 

Note 30 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS • For the year For the- year 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

(i) Salaries, wages and bonus 358.02 267.73 

(ii) Contribution to provident and other funds 20.63 15.87 

(iii) Gratuity 2440 8.56 

(vi) Staff welfare expenses 40.63 23. 16 

443.68 3 I 5.32 

Ne1 of Employee Benefits Capitalised of Rs.109.33 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 69.04 lakhs). 

Note 3 1 
FINANCE COSTS' For the year For the year 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

(1) Interest expenses 
(a) ln1eres1 on borrowings 203.21 121.35 

(b) Interest on delayed payment of taxes 13.46 

(c) Foreign exchange Fluctuation of PCFC 3.54 

(JI) Other borrowing costs - Processing Charges 1.85 2. IS 

222.06 123.50 

• Net of Interest Cap11ahsed of Rs.160.41 lakhs (Previous Vear Rs. 55.46 lakhs). 

Note 32 ' OTHER EXPENSES• For the )'tar For the ytar 

ended 31.03.2023 rnded 31.03.2022 

Advertise and publicity 8.19 4 .57 

Bag Printing Expenses 15.35 22.97 

Bag Stitching Expenses 14606 121.70 

Bank Commission and charges 29 02 18.68 

Books & Periodicals 0 36 0.20 

Carriage Outward 32 11 39 89 

Other manufacturing Exp. 308.25 30.67 

Charily and Donations 0.95 

Material Handling Charges 5.56 2. 18 

Packing Materials 49 83 12 9 ! 

Payment to Auditors 
(i) as Audit Fee 0.48 0.38 

(ii) for reimbursement of expenses 0.05 0.03 

Postage & Telegram 8.71 3.02 

Printing Ink 51.70 36.01 

Rating Charges 1.03 0.40 

Rebate, Claim & Discounts 6.64 9.58 

Repairs & Maintenance ( Others ) 44 42 28. 13 

Sales Promotion Exp. 1.25 3.96 

Software Expenses 345 2 .11 

Sorting and counting charges 29. 10 19.15 

Stat ionery & Printing 6. 17 4.14 

Subscription & Membership 7_ 13 2.55 

Telephone and Mobile 3.49 266 

Travelling Expenses 23.37 1 64 

Vehicle Running & Maintenance Expenses. 6.80 2 .00 

Warehouse Management charges 4.88 4 .70 

Water Expenses 2.39 1.87 

2,668.20 1,402.26 

- Net of Other hpenscs Cap1tal1sed of Rs.42.85 lakhs (Previous Vear Rs. 3.56 lakhs) 

Note 33 
Addi1ional-lnformation- -- for the yur 1-~or the ,-·ear 

ended 31.03.2023 ended 31.03.2022 

(i) Depreciation and Amortisation : 
(a) Depreciation expense 139.09 98.88 

(b) Amortization expense l 24 1.77 

140.33 !00.65 

(ii) Payment to Auditors: • 
(a) as Slalutory Audi!or 048 0.3& 

(b) Reimbursement of expenses 0.05 0_03 

0.53 0.41 

' • excludes Rs. 0.70 lakhs (Previous Year Rs 2.>0 lakhs ) paid for cert1ficat1on , m the nature of1mt1al pubhc offer issues expenses accounted m SecuntJes Premium 

Account. 



Nole J-1 
Earnings per share 

2022-2023 2021-2022 
Earning per share has been computed as under 
(a) Profit for the year 376.06 437.54 
(bl Weighted average number of Ordinary shares 17887507 155%000 
outstanding for the purpose of basic earnings per 
(c) Effect of potential Equity shares on conversion 0 

(d) Weighted average number of equity shares in I 7887507 15596000 
computing dilu ted eru·nings per share 

i(bl + (el) 
(e) Earnings per share on profit for the year (Face 
-Basic (a/b) 2 IO 2 81 

-Diluted (a/di 2.10 2 8 I 

Note 35 

Contint.!ent liabilities and commitments: 
(a) Contina;cm liabilities Rs in l11khs Rs in \akhs 
Claims au.ainst excise dutv and other matters 131SI ;\larch .2023 13151 March.2022 
(i) Income ta, Maucrs . I 0.79 I I 61 
Total I 0 79 I 161 .. :-Jet of deposit. 

his not practicable for 1he Group to estimate the closure of these issues and the consequential timings of cash flows. if 1111y, in respect of the above 

(b) Commitments 

• Estimated a mount of contracts remaining to be executed on I I 
GUARANTEES I I 
i) Guarantees issued by Uco Bank 

ii) Guara111cc g iven on behalf of subsidiary 
a) Guarantee given by the Company 10 Uco Bank against cash credit limit provided to Fibcorp Pol)'\\·eave 
private Limi1ed 

Note 36 

Financial Instruments and Related Disclosures : 
1. Capital Management 

Rs in lakhs 

779.42 

31st l\'larch,2023 3151 March,2022 

700.00 50000 

300.00 

The Group's capital management is intended to create value for shareholders by facilitating the meeting of long term and short term 
goals of the Group. 

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to: 
• safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders, and 

• Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. 
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital 
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets. 

The Group determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business plan also tal<ing into consideration any long t("rm 
strategic investment and expansion plans. The funding needs a re met through equity and cash genera ted from operations. 

The Group's financial strategy aims to support its strategic priorities and provide adequate capital to its businesses for growth and 
creation of sustainable stakeholder value. The Group funds its operations through internal accruals. borrowings etc. The Group aims at 
maintaining a strong capital base largely towards supporting the future growth of its businesses as a going concern. 

During the year ,to support the capital requirements, the Parent has raised a sum of Rs. 6630 lakhs through an Initial Public Offer of 
10200000 equity shares of Rs. JO/- each at a premium of Rs.55/- per share. The issue closed on 04.01.2023 and the equity shares 
were traded and listed on two premier stock exchanges of India namely BSE and NSE with effect from 12.01.2023. With this the paid 
up share capital of the Company stood at Rs.2579.60 lakhs and Securities Premium at Rs.4952.88 lakhs after adjusting the public 
issue expenses. 

2. Categories of financial Instruments 

Particulars Note As a1 31 sl ;\larch.2023 As at 31 st March,2022 
CaIT)ing Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value 

Financial assets 

Measured at amortised cost 
i) Cash and cash equivalent 9 1,061 34 1,06134 189.78 189.78 
ii) Other Bank balance 10 1,089 99 1,089.99 59.22 59 22 
iiiµ.oan - .4&!.L --- 842 70 - 842 70 685.22 685 22 
v) Trade receivables 8 1,614 37 1.614 37 1,385 58 1,385 58 
vi) Olher financial assets 5&12 14000 140.00 79. 15 79 15 
Total Financial assets 4748 40 4748.40 2398 95 2398 95 

Financial Liabilities 

Measured at amortised cost 
i) Cash Credit facilities 19 1,12359 1.123.59 713 73 713 73 
ii)Tenn loans 17 1,100.21 1. 100.21 207 96 207 96 
iii) Other loans 19 280.99 280.99 2,122 12 2,122 12 
iii) Trade payables 20 813.07 813.o7 785 40 785 40 

Total financial liabilities 3,31786 3.3 I 7.86 3.829 21 3.829 2l 

3 : FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 
The activities of the Group exposes i t to a number of fmancial risks namely market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group seeks to 
minimize the potential impact of unpredictability of U1e fmancial markets on its fmancial performance. The Group does regularly monitor 
,analyze and manage the risks faced by the Group and to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls for mitigation of the risks. 



A. MANAGEMENT OF MARKET RISK: 

Market risk is the risk that lhe fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. 
Market tisk comp,ises of three types of risks: interest rate risk, p,ice risk and currency rate 1isk. Financial instrument s affected by 
market risk includes borrowings and investments . The Group has international trade operations and is exposed to a variety of market 
risks, including currency and interest rate risks. 

(ii Management of interest rate risk: 
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fmancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. The Company does not have any exposure to interest rate risks since its borrowings and invcstJnents are all in fixed rate 
instruments. 

(iii Management of price risk: 

The Group has no surplus for investment in debt mutual funds, deposits etc. The Group does make deposit with the banks to provide 
security/margin against guarantee given by the banks. Deposit is made in fixed rate instrument. In view of this it is not susceptible to 
market price risk, arising from changes in interest rates or market yields which may impact the return and value of the investments. 

(iiil Management of currency risk: 

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fmancial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 
exchange rates. The Group has foreign currency trade receivables and is therefore exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Group mitigates 
the foreign exchange risk by setting appropriate exposure limits, periodic monitoring of the exposures etc .. The exchange rates have been 
volatile in the recent years and may continue to be volatile in the future. Hence the operating results and fmancials of the Group may be 
impacted due to volatility of the rupee against foreign currencies. 

Exposure Lo currency risk(The Group has exposure only in USD/EURO converted to functional currency i.e.lNR) 

The currency proftle of fmancial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31st, 2023, are as below: 

Rs. In Lakhs 

Financial assets Exposure currency As at 

31.03.2023 
Trade receivables USO 543.19 

EURO 544.19 

GBP 75.51 
Trade payable USO 0.03 

GBP 42. 17 

1,120.69 
Sens1uv1ty analysis 

Rs. In Lakhs 

Exposure currency As at 31.03.2022 

USO 635.88 

EURO 34.12 

GBP 30.94 

USO 
GBP 

700.94 

A reasonably possible 5% su·engthening (weakeningl of the Indian Rupee against USO/EURO at March 31 would have affected the 

measurement of fmancial instruments denominated in USO/EURO and affected profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis 

assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant and ignores any impact of forecast sales and purchases. 

Rs.in lakhs 

As at Strengthening Weakening 

Profit/(Loss) 31.03.2023 56.03 56 .03 

Profit/(Loss) 31.03.2022 35 OS 35.05 

B. MANAGEMENT OF CREDIT RISK: 

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligations by a counter party to the Group resulting in a fmancial loss to the Group. The 
Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (trade rcceivablesj and foreign exchange transactions and fmancial 
instruments. 

Credit risk from trade receivables is managed through the Group's policies, procedures and controls relating to customer credit risk 
management by establishing credit limits, credit approvals and monitoring creditworth.iness of the customers to which the Group extends 
credit in the normal course of business. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. The Group has no concentration of 
credit risk as the customer base is widely distributed. 
The Group's historical experience of collecting receivables and the level of default indicate that credit risk is low and generally uniform 

across markets; consequently, trade receivables are considered to be a single class of financial assets. All overdue customer balances are 
evaluated laking into account the age of the dues, specific credit circumstances, the track record of the counterparty etc. Loss allowances 
and impairment is recognised, where considered appropriate by responsible management. 

C. MANAGEMENT OF LIQUIDITY RISK: 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may not be able to meet its present and future cash obligations without incurring unacceptable 

losses. The Group's objective is to maintain a t all times, optimum levels of liquidity to meet its obligations. The Group closely monitors its 

liquidity position and has a cash management system. The Group maintains adequate sources of fmancing including debt and overdraft 

from domestic and international banks and financial markets at optimized cost. 

--rfie Group's Current assets aggregate toRs.7547.48 (pr yr Rs. 4116.32) lakhs including Cash and cash equivalents and Other bank 
balances of Rs.2151.33 (pr.yr Rs. 249.001 lakhs against an aggregate Current liability of Rs.2843.91 (pr yr Rs. 3913.56) lakhs ; Non­
current liabilities due between one year to three years amounting to Rs. 845.58 (pr yr Rs. 145.23) lakhs and Non-current liability due 
after three years amounting to NIL on the reporting date. Further, while the Group's total equity stands at Rs.8758.18 (Pr yrRs. 2664.81) 
lakhs, it has non-current borrowings of Rs. 845.58 (pr yr Rs. 145.231 lakhs. In such circumstances, liquidity risk or the risk that the 
Group may not be able to settle or meet its obligations as they become due docs not exist. 

D. Fair value measurement 
Fair value hierarchy 
Fair value of the financial instruments is classified in various fair value hierarchies based on the following three levels: 

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjustedl in active market for identical assets or liabilities. 
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted price included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from ptices). 

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using market approach and valuation 
techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If significant 
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in Level 2. 



Level 3: Inputs for the assets or liabili ties that arc not based on observable market data (unobse,vablc inputs). 

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is determined using gencrallv accepted 
pricing models based on a d iscounted cash flow analysis, with the most s ignificant inputs being the discount rate that reflects the credit 
risk of counterparty. 

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other Current financial assets and liabilities is considered to be equal to the 
canying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature. Where such items are Non-current in nature, the same has been 
classified a s Level 3 and fair value determined using discounted cash now basis. Similarly, unquoted equity instruments where most 
recent information to measure fair value is insufficient, or if there is a wide range of possible fair value measurements, cost has been 
considered as the best estimate of fair value. 

There has been no change in the valuation methodologv for Level 3 inputs during the year. The Group has not classified any material 
financial instruments under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. There were no transfers between Level I and Level 2 during the year. 

The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of assets an~ liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis: 

Particulars Fair value As at 31st 
hierarchy March, 2023 

Fair \'aluc 
Financial assets 
Measured at amortised cost 

i) Cash and cash equivalent L2 1,061.34 

ii) Other Bank balance L2 1.089 99 

iii) Loan L2 842.70 

v) Trade receivables L2 1,6 14 37 

vi} Other fmancial assets L2 140.00 

Total Financial assets 4748 40 

Financial Liabilities 

Measured at amortised cost 

i) Cash Credit facihl1es L2 1123 59 

ii)Term loans L2 1100.21 

i ii) Other loans L2 280.99 

iv) Trade payables L2 813.07 

Total financial liab1ht1es 3317.86 

Note 37 

Disclosures in respect of related parties pursuant to Ind AS 24 

(ii Ultimate Holding Companv 
01) Sat Industries Limited 
Iii) Fellow Subsidiarv: 
Italica Furniture Private Limited (since amalgamated with Sat Industries Limited ) 
(iii\ Key Manage,ial Personnel 
01) Mr. Hakim Sadiq Ali Tidiwala, Wholctime Director 
02) Mr.Murtaza Ali Moti, Wholetime Director 
03) Mr. Asad Daud,Director 
04) Mr. Lalit Kumar Bolia, Chief Financial Officer 
05) Mrs. Rune! Saxena,Company Secretary 

(iv) Taha Charitable Trust 

Aa at 31st 
March, 
2022 
Fair Value 

189.78 

59 22 

685 22 

1,385.58 

79 15 

2398 95 

713 73 

207.96 

2122 12 

785 40 

3829 21 

Rs m 13kh!i 

During the year following transactions were carried oul with the related parties in the ordinary course of business at ann's length price: 

Name of related party Nature of relation For tht ptriod For th period 
endrd on rndtd on 
3t/03/2023 31/03/2022 

400 1,093.93 

1180 313.93 

Sa1 Industries Limited Holding Company 66.18 20 86 
0 0.38 

0 .42 048 
Taha Charitable Trust Director is trustee 4 .25 
Remuneration Key Manac.ement Pen;onnel 53.00 36 70 

Closin& balances 
Name As a1 

J 1/0312023 

Sat Industries Limited -

Closing balances in the case of other parties is NIL 
•credll balance 

No amount in respect of the related parties have been written off/back are provided for during the year. 
Related party relationship has been identified by the Management a nd relied upon by the auditors. 

Terms a nd conditions of transactions with related parties: 

~a1ure oftransac1ion 

Loan Taken 

Loan Repayment 

Interest Paid 
Export Incentive 

Rent Recei\'ed 
CSR Exoenditurc 

Remuneration 

As al 31/03/2022 

780.00 • 

The sale to and purchases from related parties a re made in the ordinary course of business and based on the price lists in force and 
terms that would be available to third parties. 
The loans to and from related parties are made in the ordinary course of business and are on arm's length basis based on the price lists 
in force and terms that would be available to third parties. 

Outstanding balances at the year end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. No provision are held against 
receivables from related parties. 



Note 38 
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
a) DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
Provident Fund: 
The contributions to the Provident Fund of employees are made to a Government administered Provident Fund and there a re no further 

obligations beyond making such contribution. 

b) DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN 
Gratuity: 
The Group participates in the Employees' Group Gratuity-Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation Limited, a funded defined benefit plan for 
qualifying employees. Gratuity is payable to all eligible employees on death or on separation / termination in terms of the provisions of the 
Payment of Gratuity (Amendment) Act, 1997, or as per the Group's scheme whichever is more beneficial to the employees. 

The liability for the Defined Benefit Plan is provided on the basis of a valuation, using the Projected Unit Credit Method, as at the Balance 
Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary. 

Provident Fund: 
The Group makes Provident Fund contribution to the Government administered Provident fund. The Group has no part to play in this 

respect. 

c) Amounts Recognised as Expense: 
i) Defined Contribution Plan 
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund including contribution to Family Pension Fund amounting to Rs. 17.51 (pr yr Rs. 14.98 Lakhs 
has been included under Contribution to Provident and Other Funds. 

ii) Defined Benefit Plan 
Gratuity cost amounting to Rs.24.40 (pr yr Rs. 8.56) Lakhs has been included in Note 30 under Contribution to Provident and Other 
Funds. 
Note 39 
TAX RECONCILIATIONS Rs in lakhs 

Period ended Period ended 
March 31.2023 March 31 .2022 

Tax expenst'S recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

Current Tax : 

Current tax on profits for the year 55.89 108.90 

Deferred tax (Net) 80.45 2.81 

Total income tax expenses 136.34 111.71 

Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit 
The reconciliation between estimated income tax at statuto1y income tax rate into income tax expenses reported in 
Statement of Profit and Loss is given below · 

Period ended Period ended 

March 3 I .2023 March 31.2022 

Profit before income tax 512.40 549.25 

Indian statutory income tax rate 27.82% 27.82% 

Expected income tax expenses 142.55 152.80 

Tax effect of adjustment to reconcile expl'cttd income tax 
Expenses lo reported Income tax Expenses 

Tax impact of income not subject to tax 

Tax effects of amounts which are not deductible for taxable income 

Tax impact due to 438 of the Income tax Act, 1961 0.76 

MAT credit adjustments (50.82) 

Others (36 20) (44.66) 

(87.02) (43 90) 

Total income tax expenses 55.53 108.90 

Effective rate of tax(%) 10.84 19.83 

Deferred Tax (Liabilities) 
Period ended Period ended 

March 31.2023 March 31,2022 

Property Plant and Eq11ipmr-nt 78.29 2.81 

Others 

Total deferred tax liabilities 78.29 2.81 

Deferred Tax Assets 
Period ended Period ended 
March 31,2023 March 31.2022 

Provisions 

Others 0.1 1 

Total deferred ta.x Assets 0. 11 

Net Deferred ta.x (Liabilities)/Assets 80 45 2 81 

;\fovement in Deferred tax Liabilitirs /Assets 

Property, plant and Other deferred tax Provisions Other Deferred Ta.x 

equipment liability Asse1s 

As at 31 st March, 2021 133.43 6.94 8.21 23.12 

(ChargedVCredited to orofit and Loss account T 2.81 0 2.35 

As at 31st March. 2022 136.24 6.94 8.21 25.47 

(CharuedVCredited to orofit and Loss account I 78.29 0 0 II 

As at 31st March. 2023 214.53 6.94 821 25.58 

The company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 

a nd current tax liabilities and the de ferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 

same tax a uthority. 

Deferred Tax 
Liabili1ics/Asset 
(N t' 

142 67 
0.46 

143. 13 
78.18 

221.31 



Significant management j u dgment is required in determining provision for income ta x, deferred income tax assets and 

liabilities and recoverabilit~r of deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on 
estimates of taxable income in \vhich the relevant entity operates and the period over which deferred income tax assets 
\-vill be recovered. 
Tax Credits carried forward 

2022-23 

Note 40 

As at ~1arch 
31,2023 

Expiry date As at March Expil)' date 

31.2022 
53.13 31.03.2038 0.00 

There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, to whom the Company owes dues (principal and/or interest), which are outstanding 
for more than 45 days as at the balance sheet date. During the year, there have been no payments made to Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises beyond 45 days. There were no amounts on account of interest due that were payable for the period where the principal has 
been paid but interest under the MSMED Act, 2006 not paid. Further, there were no amounts towards interest accrued that were 
remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year. Accordingly, there were no amounts due to further interest due and payable in the 
succeeding years. The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the extent such parties 
have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. 

Information rcl:uing to the Micro. Sm :111 :101I Medium EntcqH·i~cs As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

(a) The principal amount and the imerest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each accouming year; 
(i) Principal amount (ii) 
Interest 

(b) The amount of interest paid by 1he buyer in tem1s of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 

2006), along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year; 

(c) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during 

the year) but without adding the interest specified under the Micro. Small and Medium E111erprises Development Act, 2006; 

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and 

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance of a deductible expenditure under section 23 o f the Micro, Small and Medium 
Ent~mri,;,('<;, Dl':VPlnnmPnt Act 2006. 

Note 41 
SEGMENT INFORMATION 
The Company operates in three primary business segments viz. Manufacturing of Fabrics & Woven Sacks etc., Consignment Stockist and financing Activities. 

As per Ind AS I 08" Operating Segment", the segments details are as under 
p rimarv: 

Particular 

Segmt'nt Rrvenue 

Manufacturing 

Trading 

Finance 

Total 

Other Income 

Total Revenue 

Segment results 

Manufacturing 

Trading 

Finance 

Total Segm ent Results 

Other Income 

Profit before tax 

Provision for tax 

Profit after tax 

Segment Assets 

Manufacturing 

Trading 

Finance & Investment 

Total 

Segment Liabilities 

Manufacturing 

Trading 

Finance & Investment 

To(al---

Capital employed 

Capital Expenditure 

Manufacturing 

Trading 

Finance & Investment 

Tota.I 

Dcprrciation and a mortization 

Manufacturing 

Trading 

Finance & Investment 

Total 

Secondary. 
GEOGRAPHICAL INFOR\1ATION 

Non Current Assets - Within India 

- O utside India 

Revenue from external customers - Within lndia 

- Outside India 

--- --

Year Ended 
31.03.2023 

8. 735.61 

698.15 

106.16 

9,S39.92 

181.70 

9.721,62 

204.22 

67.42 

59 06 

330. 70 

181.70 

512.40 

136.34 

376.06 

11,773.15 

842.70 

12,615.85 

3.142.64 

155.09 

280.00 
3,577.73 

9,038.12 

3,01 1.46 

140.33 

140.33 

March 31,2023 
4.968.37 

2.876.50 
6.466. 15 

Yt'nr Ended 

31.03.2022 

6,624.35 

1.3 18.77 
108.02 

8.051.14 
72.31 

8.123.45 

333.3 1 

86.62 

57 0 1 

476.94 

723 1 

549.25 

I 11.7 I 

437.54 

6. 18151 

685.22 

6,866.73 

3,593.69 

49.76 

558.47 
4,201.92 

2,664.81 

235.62 

100.65 

100.65 

Rs. in lakhs 
March 31,2022 

2. 750.4 1 

3.272.97 
4.439.39 



Note 42 
The Group has elected not apply the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 116- Leases to account for those leases where 

underlying assets is of low value. 

Note 43 
Balances of banks, sundry debtors and trade payables , cunent liabilities etc. as on 31.03.2023 are subject to confumation and 
reconciliation. 

Note 44 
In the opinion of the Management , there is no impairment of assets in accordance with the Ind AS -36 as on the Balance Sheet date. 

Note 45 

There are no amounts due to be cr edited to Investor Education and Protection Fund in accordance with Section 125 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 as at the year end. 

Note 46 
There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance 
sheet date. 
Note 47 
The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Director s on May 18,2023. 

Note 48 
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs and decimal thereof as per the 
requirements of Schedule 111 to the Companies Act,2013, unless otherwise stated. 

Note 49 
Previous year's figures have been reclassified/regrouped wherever necessary to conform with the current Financial Statements. 

Note 50 
No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Parent and Subsidiary for holding any benami property under the Benami 

Transactions ( Prohibition) Act,1988 and rules made thereunder. 

Note 51 
The Group has borrowings from banks on the basis of security of current assets and the quarterly returns or statements of current assets 
filed by the Group with banks or financial institutions a re in agreement with the books of accounts. 

Note 52 
The Parent and Subsidiary are not declared willful defaulters by any bank or fmancial institution or other lender. 

Note 53 
The Group has no transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act 2013 or section 560 of Companies 
Act,1956. 

Note 54 
There is no charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 
Note 55 
The Group has complied with the number of layers, wherever applicable, prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies 
Act,2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules,20 17 . 

Note 56 

The Board of Di.rectors of parent has recommended Final Dividend of Rs. 0.50 per Equity Share for the financial year ended 31st March, 
2023 (for the year ended 31st March, 2022- NIL equity share) to be paid on fully paid Equity Shares amounting to Rs. 128.98 lakhs. The 
Final Dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a liability in these 
financial state1nents. 

Note 57 

Events after the Reporting Period 

The Board of Di.rectors parent has recommended dividend of Rs. 0.50 per fully paid up equity share of Rs. 10/- each for the financial 
year 2022-23. 

Note 58 
No Scheme of Anangemen t has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,2013. 

Note 59 
Utilisation of Borrowed funds and shar e premium : 
(a) The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other source or kind of 
funds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the understanding ( whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise) the the Intermediary (i) d irectly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the company(ultimate Beneficiaries ) or (ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

(b) The Group has not received any fund from any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (intermediaries) with the 
understanding ( whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall (i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party (ultimate Beneficiaries ) or (ii) p rovide any 
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

Note 60 
There is no transaction not recorded in the books of account that has been sutrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961. Further there is no previously unrecorded income and related assets requiring 
recording in the books of account during the year . 

Note 61 
The Group has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance 

sheet date. 

Note 62 

No Scheme of Arrangement has been approved by the Competent Authoiity in tenns of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act.2013. 



Expenditure incuned on corporate social responsibility activities: 
Expenditure incurred under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 on Corporate Social 
Responsibilitv (CSR) activities - Rs. 4.91 ( 2022 - Rs. Nil lakhs) 

As at 31.03.2023 As at 31.03.2022 

( 1) Gross amount renuircd to be soent b\' the comoany durine! the vcar 4 91 

(2) Amount spent during the year on: I 
(i) Construc1ion/acnuisition of any asset I 
(ii) On oumoscs other than (i) above 

Health 0.66 

Education 4_25 

4.91 
Out of ti) .ilxnc. R,- .l 2) lakhs ~l'n:\~(l\1$ Year Rs. NIL) ~ontnhuted to Taha Chanmblc Im~\ wluch ,cs related pany and Rs.0.66 lakhs ,,ere comnbut1.-J I\) 1\~ha Dham tchant..ible in.mtuuon) 

Note 64 

The Group has done an assessment to identify Core Investment Company (CIC) [including CICs in the Group] as per the 
necessary guidelines of Reserve Bank of India [including Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016]. The 
Group is not a CIC and no entities have been identified as CIC in the Group, of which Parent and subsidiary is a part. 

Note 65 

Revenue from contract with customers differ from the revenue as per contracted price due to factors such as taxes recovered, 

volume rebate, discounts, etc. 
Note 66 

The Group has assets ( equipment etc.) wit h a lease term of 12 months or less. The Group applies the 'short term lease' 
recognition exemption for these leases. The Group also has certain leases of assets of low value. The Company applies 1ow 
values lease' recognition exemotion for these leases. 
Note 67 

The Group has neither long-term contracts nor derivatives as at March 31, 2023. 

Note 68 

The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year. 

Note 69 

The Parliament of India has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (the Code) which may impact the contributions by the company 
towards provident fund, gratuity and ESIC. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on November 
13, 2020. Final rules are yet to be notified. The company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will record 
related impact, if any. 

Nnt .. 70 
The comoanics considered in the consolidated financial statement are : 
Name Country of % of ownership % of ownership 

incorporation interest as at interest as at 
3 1/03 /2022 31/03/2021 

Subsidi•-: 
Fibcoro Polyweave Private Limited India S I.OJ SJ.OJ 

Note 71 
Additional information , as required under schedule lll to the Companies Act,2013, of enterprises controlled as subsidiary (after 
elimination) for the year ended March 3 1,2023. 

Name of the enterprises Net assets (i.e. total assets minus total Share in profit or Loss Share in Other comprehensive 

liabilities) income 

As%of Amount ( Rs. In As %of Amount ( Rs. As%of Amount ( Rs 

consolidated net lakhs) consolidated In lakhs) consolidated lakhs) 

assets profit or loss Other 
comprehensive 

income 

Parent 
Sah Polymers Limited 88.0l 11102.71 87.28 447.23 

Subsidian· 
Indian 
Fibcom Poly\veave Private Limited 1199 1513.14 12.72 65. I 7 

Total 100.00 12615.85 100 512.40 

As Per our Audit Report of even date attached 

for and on behalf of 1he Board 

~ 
HAKIM SADlQ ALI TIDIWALA 
Wholetime Director 
~ 

Director 

In 

~P,.IN 

D ACC~ 

DIN ~ 19156 

Wholctime Dir'ector 
787622 DfN· 02491539 

Udaipur, May 18.2023 

~),~,.-
LAUT KUMAR BOLIA 
Chief Financial Officer 

lJ j),J A/\ 2- "J Lf O cJ '1 'S"1 f.!::, ~ c...cr7-~ 8 Is::}-

L SAXENA 
Company Secretary 
M.No. 28022 
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